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In these consolidated appeals, Juan Jesus Dominguez-Mendoza appeals from
the 21-month sentence imposed following his guilty-plea conviction for re-entry
after deportation, in violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1326, and from the 12-month
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consecutive sentence imposed following the revocation of supervised release. We
have jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1291, and we affirm.
Dominguez-Mendoza contends that the district court procedurally erred by
failing to establish the proper Sentencing Guidelines range at the outset of the
sentencing hearing, by treating the Guidelines as mandatory, and by stating that it
needed to find exceptional or extraordinary circumstances to vary from the
Guidelines. The district court’s failure to expressly calculate the Guidelines range,
and its misconception that exceptional or extraordinary circumstances are required
to vary from the Guidelines, did not affect Dominguez-Mendoza’s substantial
rights, as the probation officer correctly calculated the Guidelines range and the
district court provided sufficient reasons for the sentence. See United States v.
Dallman, 533 F.3d 755, 761 (9th Cir. 2008). Further, the record reflects that the
district court did not treat the Guidelines as mandatory.
Dominguez-Mendoza also contends that the sentences imposed are
substantively unreasonable. The consecutive sentences at the bottom of the
respective Guidelines ranges are substantively reasonable under the totality of the
circumstances and in light of the sentencing factors set forth in 18 U.S.C.
§§ 3553(a) and 3583(e). See Gall v. United States, 552 U.S. 38, 51 (2007).
AFFIRMED.
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